The Fremont County Board of Supervisors met in regular session on Wednesday, July 6, 2022, in the Fremont County
Courthouse Boardroom, with Hickey, Clark and Sheldon present. A quorum was declared, and the meeting officially called to
order at 9:00 a.m. Minutes of the previous board session were read and approved. The agenda was approved as posted.

Let the records show that Engineer Dan Davis, Treasurer Alise Snyder, Roger Brink, Sherrie Brink, Dean Weiss, Joan Kirk,
Melody Van Scyoc, Clint Wooten, Stephen Thatcher, Kristen Thatcher, Steve Perdue, Donna Perdue, Ida Van Seyoc, Tandon
Van Scyoc, Gregory Christensen, Kathy Beam, Nancy Weiland, Heather Coulter, and Liz Skillern with Valley News Today were
present for this meeting. Kim Tudor and Ryan Urkoski joined by telephone.

The board advised the group of the 5-minute time limit per speaker for the public comment portion of the meeting. Ida Van
Scyoc spoke regarding the wind turbines. She spoke about a prior meeting when Sheldon questioned why there was only 2 people
that had public comment in 2019. Sheldon inadvertently stated in the 6/14/22 meeting that the hearings were held and the
ordinance was passed in 2019. It was in 2020, but he was correct about only two people with public comment. Van Scyoc pointed
out the maps that were provided by Invenergy were missing many houses in that area and she didn’t believe the setbacks were
correct. Van Scyoc stated that if the board had done their due diligence they would have noticed that. The board stated that it was
their understanding that the houses shown on the map were the participating landowners but would ask Invenergy for
clarification. Clint Wooten said that he felt that Locust Grove was taking the bullet for Fremont County. He spoke about the
condition of gravel roads depending on what route they use to bring turbines in and questioned if they would cut into other
property owner’s corners. He talked about the company not stopping if it was raining and that tearing up the roads even more.
The board stated again that they are to put the roads in the original condition or better. There were multiple comments and
conversations happening at once during the meeting. There were public comments from visitors including Tandon Van Scyoc,
Steve and Donna Perdue, Roger and Sherrie Brink, Dean Weiss, Joan Kirk, Kristen Thatcher, Nancy Weiland, Heather Coulter,
Treasurer Alise Snyder, Engineer Dan Davis, and the members of the board of supervisors. Tandon Van Scyoc asked about the
definition of conservation. He questioned how wind turbines affected any conservation areas close by such as CRP ground and
watersheds. The topic of public hearing and publications of those hearings was brought up again. The board published according
to the lowa Code before each hearing was held. Ida Van Scyoc voiced that she didn’t think the hearings should have been held
during the pandemic with the courthouse closed. The board and auditor assured her that the courthouse was not closed during
these hearings. Treasurer Snyder spoke about the lack of industry in Fremont County. She pointed out that the loss of Eaton
Corporation was significant. Weiland asked the board to consider moving the public hearing to a night meeting. The board
pointed out that it has already been published and Invenergy sent notices to residents. Weiland asked that the boards table the
decision and hold a night meeting. Supervisor Sheldon discussed that the county would open themselves up to litigation if
Invenergy adheres to the ordinance with their application and the board denies it. After much discussion, Roger Brink, Sherrie
Brink, Dean Weiss, Joan Kirk, Melody Van Scyoc, Clint Wooten, Stephen Thatcher, Kristen Thatcher, Steve Perdue, Donna
Perdue, Ida Van Scyoc, Tandon Van Scyoc, Gregory Christensen, Kathy Beam, Nancy Weiland, and Shelley Jennings left the
meeting at 10:12 a.m.

The board considered the resolution approving the engineer’s plan and report for the proposed drainage district at HWY 2/129.
Motion by Sheldon to approve Resolution No. 2022-41. Motion carried unanimously.

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-41

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLAN AND REPORT OF ENGINEER

FOR PROPOSED HIGHWAY 2/1-29 CROSSROADS LEVEE DISTRICT,

AND ESTABLISHING PUBLIC HEARING DATE AND TIME

WHEREAS, affected landowners previously filed a Drainage/Levee Petition (“Petition™) with the Fremont County Auditor in or
around Octlober 22, 2020, for the establishment of a levee system to be located at the Highway 2 and I-29 interchange located in
Fremont County, Towa; and

WHEREAS, in accord with Chapter 468 of the Jowa Code, Olmsted & Perry Consulting Engineers, Inc. (“Olmsted™) was duly
appointed to provide a plan and report for the establishment of such a levee district to protect property owners generally located
at the intersection of Highway 2 and Interstate 29 in Fremont County, lowa; and

WHEREAS, Olmsted has prepared and presented to the Fremont County Board of Supervisors an Engineering Report in accord
with §468.14 of the lowa Code dated August 31, 2021, and as revised February 21, 2022, for consideration by the Fremont
County Board of Supervisors; and

WHEREAS, Olmsted presented the Engineering Plan to the Fremont County Board of Supervisors on March 23, 2022, and the
Fremont County Board of Supervisors desires to tentatively approve said Engineering Report dated August 31, 2021, and as
revised on February 21, 2022.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE FREMONT COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AS FOLLOWS:

1: In accord with §468.14 of the Iowa Code, the Fremont County Board of Supervisors hereby provides its approval to the
Olmsted Engineering Report dated August 31, 2021, and as revised February 21, 2022,
2. It is ordered that a public hearing on the pending Petition for Establishment of Levee District is set for the 17th day of

August, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. at the Fremont County Courthouse located at 506 Filmore Street, Sidney, Iowa. In accord with
§468.14, the Fremont County Auditor shall cause notice to be given to the owner of each tract of land or lot within the proposed
levee district and as shown by the transfer books of the Auditor’s Office, including railway companies having right-of-way in the
proposed district into all the lienholders and encumbrancers of any land within the proposed district without naming them,



//.
/

(

lienholders and encumbrancers of any land within the proposed district without naming them, and also to all persons whom it
may concern, without naming individuals all actual occupants of the land in the proposed district, the pendency relief requested
in the Petition filed on or around October 22, 2020, with the Fremont County Auditor. All claims for damages, except claims for
land required for right-of-way, and all objections to the establishment of the district shall be made in writing and filed with the
Fremont County Auditor at or before the time set for hearing,
The aforesaid notice shall be served by publication at least twenty (20) days before the hearing date, and copies of said
notice shall be sent by ordinary mail to each person named in the notice at that person’s last known mailing address, with said
notice to be mailed not less than twenty (20) days prior to the date set for hearing, The Fremont County Auditor shall file Proofs
of Publication and Proofs of Service by Affidavit prior to the scheduled hearing date and time.
4, At the time set for public hearing on the Petition, the Fremont County Board of Supervisors shall hear and determine
the sufficiency of the Petition in form and substance and all objections filed against the establishment of such district. After said
public hearing, the Board may (1) order further investigation and examination and continue the hearing to a fixed date; (2)
dismiss the Petition; or (3) approve and establish the proposed district in accordance with the recommendation of the Engineering
Report on file with the Fremont County Auditor.
DATED this 6th day of July, 2022,

/s/ Randy Hickey

Chairperson, Fremont County

Board of Supervisors
ATTEST:
/s/ Dee Owen
Fremont County Auditor

Engineer Dan Davis met with the board regarding the BNSF Settlement. Motion by Clark to accept the settlement of $400,000
for costs incurred during the flood. Motion carried unanimously.

Treasurer Alise Snyder met with the board for the approval of the semi-annual report. Motion by Hickey to approve the semi-
annual report. Motion carried unanimously.

At 10:12 a.m., Chief Deputy Bothwell joined the meeting and spoke the board regarding benefits of the deputies switching to 12-
hour shifts. He also suggested that the language in the union contract should be worded differently regarding time off. Motion by
Sheldon to table this issue to reconsider at the next meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

The Recorder’s Monthly Report for June was approved.

Claims were approved for July 8, 2022.

At 10:28 a.m., there being no further business, Sheldon made a motion to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously.

ATTEST:

$ <
LU OM,\___, < s

o
Dee Owen, Auditor Rarfdy Hickey/ Chairman




General Basic Fund

Stationery & Forms

Mail Services LLC

Data Processing Supplies

Office Warehouse Inc.

Safety & Protective Supplies
Galls, LLC.

Board Proceedings

The Hamburg Reporter Nebraska
The Malvern Leader/Beacon Ent.
Employee Mileage & Subsistence
Ryan Dale

Telephone & Telegraph Services
Chat Mobility

Community Connections, Inc.
Richardson Sanitation Scott Ri
US Cellular

Windstream Iowa Communication
Labor Relations Services

Jack R. Reed Iowa Negotiation
Water & Sewer

City of Sidney

Office & Data Proc Equip Maint
Schneider Geospatial LLC
Solutions, Harris Local Gov
Office Equipment

Des Moines Stamp Mfg.Co.
Custodial

JD Lawn Service James Allen Ba
Extermination Services

Jeff Vrba ResCom Services

Dues & Memberships

ISAC

Water/Sewer Structures

Michael Ham

Data Processing

Solutions, Harris Local Gov
General Supplemental Fund
Legal & Court-Related Services
SWI Juv. Emergency Svcs

Tort Liability

IA Communities Assurance Pool
Custodial

Towa Precinct Atlas Consortium
ARPA (restricted)

Other Services-Misc

Schneider Geospatial LLC

Claims July 8, 2022

460.29
112.19
67.29

353.50
2,627.82

139.82
46.87
70.00
51.00
63.41

265.05

2,250.00
79.40

3,090.00
3,638.11

19.90
1,266.66
165.00
6,100.00
1,000.00

36.25

22,439.87
38,000.00

3,701.24

3,672.00

Rural Services Basic Fund
Sanitation & Disposal Services
Fremont Co Sanitary Landfill
Secondary Road Fund

Cover Aggregate & Sand
Schildberg Constr Co Inc
Traffic & Street Sign Material
Midwest Sandbags, LLC
Custodial Supplies

Wells Fargo Bank Elite Card Pa
Hardware (non motor vehicle)
Continental Research Corp
Parts (non motor vehicle)
Elizabeth Shirley

Fuels

Sapp Brothers Truck Stops Inc
Safety Items

Continental Research Corp
Tires & Tubes

Sapp Brothers Truck Stops Inc
Minor Mv Parts & Access
Freightliner Truck Center Co
Wells Fargo Bank Elite Card Pa
Stationery & Forms

Wells Fargo Bank Elite Card Pa
Educational & Training Service
ICEOQ Treasurer - Shelly Bleam
Engineering Services

HGM Associates Inc.

Wells Fargo Bank Elite Card Pa
Medical & Health Services
Eyecare Associates of SW Iowa
Walman Optical Company
Motor Vehicle Equipment
Wells Fargo Bank Elite Card Pa
Workmens' Compensation Ins
IMWCA

Sanitation & Disposal Services
Richardson Sanitation Scott Ri
Resource Enhance.(Reap)
Richardson Sanitation Scott Ri
Local Option Sales Tax
Contrib to Other Gov & Org
Schneider Geospatial LLC

Jnt Disaster Serv.Fund
Telephone & Telegraph Services
Chat Mobility

Grand Total

4,427.92

3,835.88
392.50
167.87
229.00
621.00

5,356.80
293.61
182.78

53.32
49.98

93.23
225.00

2,354.75
35.98

160.00
93.00

12.00
10,544.00
140.00

25.00

2,060.00

36.45

121,105.74



The Fremont County Beard of Supervisors met in regular session on Wednesday, July 13, 2022, in the Fremont County
Courthouse Boardroom, with Hickey, Clark and Sheldon present. A quorum was declared, and the meeting officially called to
order at 9:00 a.m. Minutes of the previous board session were read and approved. The agenda was approved as posted.

Chairman Hickey addressed the audience advising of their 5-minute time limit & asked that they be respectful of eachother.

Let the records show that Treasurer Alise Snyder, Deputy Mike Wake, Assistant County Attorney Ryan Dale, Marjorie L.
McQueen, Shirley L. Thrasher, David Glenn, Mark Crowl, Bret Dublinske, Shawn Haynie, Sandra (Ohrt) Jensen, Tandon Van
Scyoc, Brett Craven, Noel Gandy, Jill Gandy, Penny Bredensteiner, Kim Tudu, Erman Mullins, Gary Moody, Gayle Moody,
Mike Peterson with KMA, Lewis Martin, Isaac Lampe, Andrew Lacina, Ginger Gruber, Mandy Whipple, John Whipple, Donald
Laumann, Nancy Ohrt, Charles Dovel, Mike Dovel, Ryan Urksoki, Kalen Fulk, Dennis Almquist, Sherrie Brink, Dean Weiss,
Joan Kirk, Mike Whisler, Melinda Whisler, Jeff Shearer, Ben Roberts, Steve Perdue, Donna Perdue, Ida Van Scyoc, Brian
Langner, Gregory Christensen, Rebecca Dublinske, Gary Percgrine, Ryan Slater, Christi Slater, Diane Marshall, Norma Troxel,
Steve Stenzel, Heather Coulter, Jacob Holmes, and Liz Skillern with Valley News Today were present for this meeting. Present
by teleconference were IT Arnold Emberton, Dan Litchfield, Jeff Ellenbogen, M.D., Ethan Hewitt, Ryan Matheny, Michael
Hankard, Dylan L., M. Fulk, Mike MaRous, David Loomis, and several callers that didn’t identify themselves.

A1 9:10 a.m., Sheriff Kevin Aistrope joined the meeting.

Sherrie Brink addressed the board showing them a photo of a wind tower made to scale. She said she would donate her time to
another person present at the meeting. The board stated that she could use her five minutes, but it could not be “donated”.

Brian Langner, Fisher Township, read what the scope of authority of lowa Supervisors which included in part “to perform any
function to protect and preserve the rights, privileges, and property of the county or of its residents, and to preserve and

improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of its residents”. He stated that the only winner is the multi-
billion dollar privately owned corporation. He stated that it was tearing apart the social fabric of the area. He said if the State of
Towa has their way Fremont County will not see the money. He also discussed absentee landowners, the tax abatement the wind
company will receive, and other social/economic issues. He said they will speak at the ballot box. Penny Bredensteiner, Locust
Grove Township, stated she lives on the lowa/Missouri border. She said has a tower right outside her house and said dryers are
much louder than turbines have ever been. She also discussed plentiful wildlife on and near her property. She discussed people
hunting on her ground and with no major industry in Fremont County this will help the tax base. She discussed Sun Valley Lake
paying by the inch we have nothing compared to that. She said the state would like to move everything to Council Bluffs. She
doesn’t want to see services lost locally in our area. She added that she is an advocate of clean energy. She said she does not want
to see the progress that had been made stop. Lewis Martin of Sidney discussed coal and nuclear being cleaner forms of energy.
Tandon Van Scyoc asked if the board reads ordinances. He quoted an error in the solar ordinance that the board passed that
references wind energy devices in the violations and penalties section. He stated that he hasn’t received any results of the
environmental impact study. He said he has still not seen any of it and the board was supposed to ask for it. He said that page 5 of
wind turbine ordinance discusses the location of any conservation areas such as Conservation Reserve Program. Chairman
Hickey stated that he has ground in CRP and he believes that the landowner can take it out of CRP at any time by paying back the
funds they received. Ida Van Scyoc asked again about the setback map. She asked Invenergy about why her house was not on the
map. She stated that ninety-five homes were missing which includes about 74 residents. She questioned how they could miss
them if they did their research. She said these weren’t dilapidated or abandoned houses. She stated the fact that Invenergy didn’t
do the research and the board of supervisors didn’t do the research. Invenergy rebutted with the fact that they feel confident with
the results that they have. There are none that will violate the setback. Van Scyoc questioned why she got a letter, but her house
wasn’t on the map.

At 9:20 a.m,, Sergeant Andrew Wake joined the meeting.

Heather Coulter, Locust Grove, asked if distances will be reviewed, decibels checked, and who pays for additional cost for the
oversight. The board stated that the engineer is zoning commissioner. He is absent today because he is in Ames for a schooling.
She implored the board to pause their decision. Dennis Almquist of Sidney discussed his concern of energy sprawl. He said the
harsh reality is that solar and wind make a larger footprint than coal. He is concerned that the project will expand in the future.
Vice Chairman Clark said there are no current plans for any expansion. Clark stated that the application in front of them is for
Fremont County. Supervisor Sheldon said if Page County denies their permit they will have to start over again. Sheldon said
anything above what is on this application would have to be approved again. Sandra Ohrt-Jensen questioned decommissioning
funding/plan. Sheldon stated that no construction can start until the decommissioning and road agreements are in place. She said
a big concern is having a tower to for a multi-year agreement and the company goes broke. She asked how they dispose of these
turbines and if they end up in the giant landfill. Supervisor Sheldon stated that the board told Invenergy what they must see in the
decommissioning agreement. Ohrt-Jensen asked when they are to the point of the decommissioning plan if the citizens have the
right to speak. Sheldon said the public always has the right to come into any board meeting. Noel Gandy, 4247 260" Street, said
he emailed the board members and got one return email. He said his home was one not on the setback map and it is where
turbine number 9 is located. He said many of his neighbor’s homes were not on the map either. Charlie Dovel said he is from the



Hamburg area, but he has property in Locust Grove area. He said he is not for the towers. He said they rejected last company that
came through and so did his neighbor. His suggestion to the board is to reject this or wait to see what Page County does. Shawn
Haynie, 4233 240" Street, Shenandoah, asked about the houses being left off the map. He said there were a lot of questions and
discrepancies. He added there was no such thing as free money. Mark Crowl the lowa Development Manager for Invenergy gave
a presentation of slides. He said there are 15 projects in the state and they have learned more with each project. He stated that
Invenergy has created local jobs and being a veteran himself he knows high number of veterans they have as employees. He said
it is the projected to deliver $27 million over the life of the project to schools and $1.5 million to participants. He said that the
dollars stay here in the county. He went over the ordinance 2021 and that it outlines wind energy conversion system
requirements. He said what the has timeline of the project has been and how they meet or exceed the application or ordinance
requirements. They have actually taken a conservative approach. He said the rest of application has additional requirements that
they also were meeting and exceeding. Ryan Slater, Fisher Township, asked how many lawsuits Invenergy has against them.
Mark Crowl of Invenergy said he was not aware of the number. Slater said the first time he received anything was a letter he
received last week. He asked the board if they were going to have them anywhere near their houses. Joan Kirk, Fisher Township,
stated that she has not received one map. She said she called the company about being in the flight path of the airport and never
heard back. She asked if the Engineer Dan Davis, who she said does a good job, if this would be pushing him thin too thin. She
also discussed people that signed for them not living in the county or state and existing solar panels in the county that aren’t
following requircments in the ordinance. The board stated those were grandfathered in. Mandy Whipple, Locust Grove
Township, said she lives right on state line. She said she rarely hears them. She said she was skeptical at first. She said that peace
and tranquility are important to her equine business, so she spoke to people in Atchison County who have them and people who
do not. She said no one had any complaints. She stated that they have all kinds of wildlife in their area including a bald eagle nest
in tree line. She also spoke about the decommissioning and fairly new technology where they take silica out and turn it into
concrete. She said Atchison County is seeing the benefits in their schools, non-profits, and mental health system. David Glenn
said he lives in Missouri with wind turbines and has land in Locust Grove. He believes a hog barn is worse. He said projects there
have expanded and he is seeing more red lights. He said he hears grain silos more than turbines. He said the flicker does seem
like a strobe light on a rare occasion when sun is just right in combine, He said he got a turbine in Missouri because his son is
into green energy. He said people fought it there and not everyone is going to get what they want. He said it is a good tax base
once the abatements go away. Jill Gandy of 4247 260 Street, Shenandoah, stated that they moved here 6 years ago from
Mississippi. She said everyone loves their property and they don’t want unsightly wind turbines. She said they fell in love with
the Midwest. She said when they moved here and didn’t have curtains they couldn’t stay in the house because the red lights
caused her to panic. She said she still doesn’t look out those windows. She looks toward Fremont County and Nebraska. She said
someone approached them a while back wanting to purchase their property, they never wanted to sell. She said no one wants to
buy now. Her house was one of the houses not on the map. Nancy Ohrt, Locust Grove Township, said she was very disappointed
in the public hearing. She said she can’t hear what anyone was saying and the board was very unprepared. She said it would’ve
helped if they were better prepared for this meeting. Donnie Laumann, Farragut, said he has 900 acres in Missouri with turbines.
He said the companies there have done nothing they didn’t approve of on their farms. He lives in the Shenandoah School District.
He talked about the gymnasium in Tarkio that windmills built, Rock Port built one, and that Westboro has a new fire station.
They have four towers and no problems with any of them. He said one farm has two and the only time he hears anything is after
shutting off tractor and he hears a woosh, woosh. John Whipple, Locust Grove Township, talked to commissioner of Atchison
County about the income for farmers and the property taxes they bring in. He said Tarkio has gotten a lot of economic benefit and
economic development. Steve Stenzel, Madison Township, stated he doesn’t think the noise from turbines is terrible. He said he
can hear them about one and one-half mile away when wind direction is correct. He said there is a woosh and a mechanical whir,
He asked if wind towers are going to be allowed near the town of Farragut or Riverton. The board stated that the attorney used an
overview of all different counties to develop our ordinance. Stenzel also talked about changes in property values. Jeff Shearer
stated he lives on the Goldenrod (310% Street) close to Steve he said he can hear the drone of the generator and sound of blades.
He said Warren Buffet said that wind turbines are not viable. He also discussed a generator falling off a trailer on 310™ Street
once. He said the company sent rep from Spain and that gentleman said even if this would have made to field would wear out
before they make any profit. He said tax incentives make it viable and it’s called wealth redistribution which is another saying for
Socialism. He said the board should have a joint meeting with Page County and see what kind of hornet’s nest is stirred up and
who they should be protecting. Jane Stimson questioned the number of turbines Atchison how much they have raised. She said
there are 300 on 4 farms. She said there are 33 proposed here and that is a huge difference in comparison. Kalen Fulk, Page
County resident, asked Invenergy how many sold projects were sold. Invenergy stated they successfully sold all of their wind
projects. He discussed the size of the proposed turbines. He ended with a request that they seek legal counsel and put a
moratorium on all projects to get holes figured out. Female speaker asked the board to please look further. She asked the board to
consider that her house was left off the map, the environmental study not here, decommissioning, not signing after you make a
deal, height of the turbines, health studies, no private space, property values going down. Ginger Gruber stated her mother lives
in Locust Grove Township. She heard a lot of concerns. She said that naysayers always the loudest. She discussed economic
benefits of the project.

At 10:35 a.m., the board took a 10-minute recess. At 10:45 a.m., they board was back in session.

Marvin Gubser, Madison Township, spoke regarding his 8 towers in Missouri and people should be looking at the benefits. He
said he lives 200" off of 310™ Street and has more trouble with loud pipes on pickups than they ever have with turbines. Sherrie



Brink stood up again. She asked the board is they have ever done any business for wind energy companies in the past and if there
was any conflict of interest. The board stated they have not. She said if you vote you cannot use your trucks to haul rock, The
board reminded her that she already had her time to speak at the beginning of the meeting. She chose not to use the S-minutes at
that time. The board asked that any callers on the phone state names and told them they had 5-minutes. No response. Christy
Slater, Fisher Township, stated they were not aware that there was a proposed turbine right across the fence line from them. She
stated the landowner out of state has 120 acres and they were never approached for good neighbor agreement. Attomey Brett
Dublinski, Invenergy, spoke and stated he would know if they had been sued regarding earlier questions about lawsuits, He said
there is one suit that Invenergy has sued a county regarding site work being done. He stated Fremont County’s ordinance is
stricter than most. He stated what matters for this decision is the ordinance in place today. Shenandoah Hills Wind application
includes all information that the ordinance requires. It has been discussed for months, available months, complied with ordinance,
and all they ask is vote yes on the vote scheduled for today. Page County Supervisor Jake Holmes received a letter regarding a
suit, vested rights issue before project was even submitted, seeking legal counsel, and using great caution. Norma Troxel, Fisher
Township, stated her house was not on map and they received no letter. She questioned if towers are twice as tall is the noise
louder. Crowl stated it doesn’t mean that larger turbines equal louder turbines. He said the sound profile is not dependent upon
the size of the turbines. She asked who will repair the roads and spoke about and eagle nest one mile west of her. She asked the
board to please do their due diligence. Dean Weiss, Page County resident that owns property in Fremont County, He discussed
the turbines in Orient, IA, and the life expectancy being 10 years, He said two guys that work for REA in Rock Port said they
were only working part of the time. He said less than 10% of questions were answered. He asked how much government funding
there was. Invenergy assured him there was no government funding only the production tax credit. At this point, IT stated there
was a problem unmuting the phone system. Brett Craven, Locust Grove Township, stated he lives % mile away from a turbine
and gotten used to it. He said sometimes you can feel it at night. Supervisor Sheldon stated they went over the setbacks. Craven
asked if you can put one closer on your own land if you want. He mentioned that you have to abide by ordinance but wondered if
you can do what you want to your own property. After no further commenters, at 11:15 a.m., motion by Clark to go out of public
hearing. Motion carried unanimously.

Chairman Hickey stated they will now review the application for a wind energy conversion system project. He said the board
heard all of the comments, the zoning administrator reviewed the application for two months, they reviewed complied with all
laws and ordinances, and set a boundary that has been followed. Clark made a motion to approve the wind energy project
application. Hickey, aye; Clark, aye; Sheldon, aye.

Erman Mullins and Ben Roberts met with the board to discuss 10-12 buyout properties and possibly leasing them for camping for
veterans. Mullins said it saves the county maintenance. Ben Roberts stated there would be green space to plant trees and other
things through his non-profit. He said some of the properties they are interested in are south of Hamburg and by McPaul and they
would be available for recreation. Mullins asked where to go from here. Assistant County Ryan Dale said he would prepare a
lease and have sign, but FEMA and lowa Homeland Security have to approve it first. He said that probably wouldn’t happen until
next summer.

At 11:28 a.m., motion by Clark to go into closed session under IA Code20.17(3). Motion carried unanimously.
At 11:40 a.m., Sheldon made a motion to go out of closed session. Motion carried unanimously.

Ida Van Scyoc met with the board regarding a moratorium on further wind turbine projects in the county. She said things were
not brought up correctly, some things were not defined such as conservation, and other counties do. She again referenced the
solar erdinance with wind energy listed in there. She said she is on admiral trail board and has not gotten far because they need
more money. She referenced the setback being from the property line not from foundation. She asks that the board be fair on
green energy projects. The board stated they are not opposed to this. They will take a look at her suggestions. Motion by Hickey
to table the issue of a moratorium on future wind projects. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Clark to sign FY22 audit services letter with Gronewold, Bell, Kyhnn, & Co., P.C. Motion carried unanimously.
Claims were approved for July 15, 2022.

At 12:00 p.m., there being no further business, Sheldon made a motion to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously.

ATTEST:

i u(// @(}wﬁ\__. Tl

‘Dee Owen, Auditor R#Ad




General Basic Fund

Wages of Temp & Part-time Empl
Pink Flamingo Services

Food & Provisions

Card Services

Dollar General Charged Sales
Custodial Supplies

Valeri Albertsen

Tunnicliff, Inc. dba JB Parts
Fuels

WEX BANK

Tires & Tubes

Farragut Oil Inc

Minor Mv Parts & Access

Meier Repair

Stationery & Forms

Card Services

Quadient Finance USA, Inc.
Photocopy/Fax Supplies

All Copy Products, Inc.

Minor Equip & Hand Tools
Card Services

Dollar General Charged Sales
Medical & Laboratory Supplies
Dollar General Charged Sales
Recreational Supplies

Van-Wall Equipment, Inc
Wearing Apparel & Uniform
Brown's Shoe Fit Company
Galls, LLC.

Great Plains Uniforms LLC

Rent Payments

Nishnabotany Lodge 153 c/o Wil
Official Publ & Legal Notices
The Malvern Leader/Beacon Ent.
Board Proceedings

The Hamburg Reporter Nebraska
Postage & Mailing

Quadient Finance USA, Inc.
Telephone & Telegraph Services
AT&T Mobility

Kris Henneman

Doug Weber

Windstream lowa Communication
Acct/Audit & Clerical Services
Cost Advisory Services, Inc.
Gronewold, Bell, Kyhnn & Co PC
Engineering Services

State Hygienic Laboratory

Legal & Court-Related Services
Deana D. Crouch Fourth Judicia
Reporting Services, LLC

Water & Sewer

City of Sidney

Iowa Dept of Natural Resources
Midwest Laboratories Inc
Buildings

Midwest Data Center, Inc.

Fixed Plant Equipment

Chris Eickemeyer Eickemeyer Re
Stouder Plumbing LLC

Office & Data Proc Equip Maint
Midwest Data Center, Inc.
Northland Securities, Inc.

Radio & Related Equip Maint
AT&T Mobility

Verizon Connect NWF, Inc

Claims July 15, 2022

160.00

172.46
4.00

240.00
108.07

80.89
16.00
1,173.11

1,822.00
82.26

305.84

120.68
98.15

53.40
339.65
119.00
165.37
226.49
540.00
157.50
185.50
82.27
587.36
40.00
40.00

2,103.57

4,125.00
8,068.63

695.00

23.50
66.30

480.24
25.00
40.00
88.66

249.45
389.98

1,000.00
1,500.00

1,043.75
258.00

Miscellaneous Repair & Maint
B&C Towing & Repair, LLC
Benefiel Truck Repair & Towing
Cleanwash Laundry Systems
First Interstate Bank

Tunnicliff, Inc. dba JB Parts
Midwest Turf & Irrigation

Davis Equipment Corporation DB
Office Equipment

Paper Tiger Shredding

Ricoh USA, Inc

Custodial

CINTAS LOC 749

Dues & Memberships

ISAC

Perm.Landscaping,Capital Outla
RC Tree Services Inc

Data Processing

Access Technologies, Inc. Acce
First Interstate Bank

Rural Services Basic Fund
Fuels

WEX BANK

Sanitation & Disposal Services
Richardson Sanitation Scott Ri
Secondary Road Fund

Asphalt & Asphalt Products
Denco Corp

OMG Midwest, Inc. Attn: Accoun
Page County Engineer

Cover Aggregate & Sand
Schildberg Constr Co Inc

Fuels

Farragut Oil Inc

Minor Mv Parts & Access

MHC Kenworth

Telephone & Telegraph Services
Windstream lowa Communication
Water & Sewer

City of Sidney

Motor Vehicle Equipment

MHC Kenworth

Resource Enhance.(Reap)
Electric Power

MidAmerican Energy Co.
Contrib to Other Gov & Org
Holt Gas Co. Inc.

Jnt Disaster Serv.Fund

Fuels

WEX BANK

Telephone & Telegraph Services
Windstream lowa Communication
Co. Assessor Agency Fund
Fuels

WEX BANK

Stationery & Forms

All Copy Products, Inc.

Data Processing Services
Schneider Geospatial LLC

E911 Surcharge

Telephone & Telegraph Services

FMTC-SWT, Inc Omnitel Communic

Prairie Telephone Company, Inc
Windstream lowa Communication
Fremont Co-HRA

Medical & Health Charges
Auxiant

Grand Total

425.00
270.00

73.09

18.42
117.18
143.71
699.60

30.00
28.40

30.00
375.00
1,200.00
516.72
756.76
8,622.93
650.00
138,323.78
2,788.08
5,033.99
4,022.77
2,608.76
15,960.14
231.38
96.45

15,432.15

146.67

5.40

77.28

53.81

97.07
257.42
19,064.00
212.96
734.00
306.58
2,639.34

249,125.92



The Fremont County Board of Supervisors met in special session on Friday, July 15, 2022, in the Fremont County Courthouse
Boardroom, with Hickey and Clark present. Sheldon was present by telephone. A quorum was declared, and the meeting
officially called to order at 8:05 a.m. The agenda was approved as posted.

Motion by to approve the amended sheriff’s office union agreement as previously negotiated. Motion carried unanimously.
Hickey phoned Chief Deputy Bothwell to ask him to submit changes to the auditor’s office.

At 8:15 a.m., there being no further business, Clark made a motion to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously.

ATTEST:

F 4

L (o
“~_.. Dee Owen, Auditor




The Fremont County Board of Supervisors met in regular session on Wednesday, July 20, 2022, in the Fremont County
Courthouse Boardroom, with Hickey and Clark present, Let the record show Sheldon was absent for this meeting. A quorum was
declared, and the meeting officially called to order at 9:00 a.m. The agenda was approved as posted. Minutes of the previous
board sessions were read and approved,

Let the records show that Assistant Engineer Robbie Kromminga and Liz Skillern with Valley News Today were present for this
meeting.

Assistant Engineer Robbie Kromminga met with the board for the signing of the following:
Motion by Clark to sign a payment voucher with HGM Associates for engineering services on J-10 & J-24 per agreement through
June 30, 2022. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Clark to sign the authorization of additional services/charges with HGM Associates for grant assistance regarding J-
64. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Clark to sign work in ROW permit for Tim Dreyer to clean ditches on his property in Section 23, Township 68, Range
41, along 240th Street & 360th Avenue. Motion carried unanimously.

Claims were approved for July 22, 2022,
At 9:06 a.m., there being no further business, Clark made a motion to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously.

ATTEST:

LDJ
ee Owen, Auditor

Randy chﬁaﬁ{ 7



General Basic Fund

Wages of Temp & Part-time Empl
Pink Flamingo Services

Veterans Affairs Commission
Justin Driever

Patrick Gilson

Fred Moyer

Phillip Peters

John Travis

Lubricants

Bateman Services Inc.

Tires & Tubes

Bateman Services Inc.

Safety & Protective Supplies
Daniel Defense, Inc

Stop Stick, Ltd

Acute & Emergency Treat.
Shenandoah Medical Center
Southwest lowa Home Health Svs
Homemaker-Home Health Aides
Southwest lowa Home Health Svs
Other

First Interstate Bank

Board Proceedings

The Hamburg Reporter Nebraska
Postage & Mailing

First Interstate Bank

Telephone & Telegraph Services
Pioneer Telephone

Windstream Iowa Communication
Natural Gas,LP Gas, Fuel Oil
Black Hills Energy

Buildings - Rental

General Basic Fund

Custodial

CINTAS LOC 749
Extermination Services

Jeff Vrba ResCom Services

Dues & Memberships

Secretary of State Notary Divi
Contrib to Other Gov & Org
Iowa Dept of Revenue Administr
General Supplemental Fund
Employee Gr Ins-County Contrib
ISAC Group Health Program
Rural Services Basic Fund
Contrib to Other Gov & Org
Barbara Beran

Sharon Gilbert

Carole Hamilton

Kiefer Lacey

Claims July 22, 2022

80.00
36.00
50.00
36.00
44.00
44.00
85.00
120.00

3,204.65
44.00

123.50
42,326.48

1,531.62
80.23
630.00
9.00

47.55
345.40

376.80
60.07
30.00

105.00
30.00

4,947.60

5,575.38

120.00
120.00
120.00
160.00

David Lueth

Penney Philip

Patrick D Sheldon

Tandon Van Scyoc
Secondary Road Fund
Cover Aggregate & Sand
OMG Midwest, Inc. Attn: Accoun
Schildberg Constr Co Inc
Fuels

Holt Gas Co. Inc.

Tires & Tubes

Heartland Tires & Treads
Minor Mv Parts & Access
Tunnicliff, Inc. dba JB Parts
MHC Kenworth

Star Equipment Ltd

Whipp Sales and Service
Engineering Services

HGM Associates Inc.
Medical & Health Services
County Employee

County Employee

Natural Gas,LP Gas, Fuel Oil
Black Hills Energy

Electric Power
Atchison-Holt Elec.Co-Op
Motor Vehicle Equipment
Country Tire-Shenandoah
MHC Kenworth

Dues & Memberships
FUELIowa

Construction & Maintenance
Woodhouse Chrysler, Jeep & Ram
Resource Enhance.(Reap)
Electric Power
MidAmerican Energy Co.
Jnt Disaster Serv.Fund
Stationery & Forms

Creative Product Source, Inc.
Postage & Mailing

Adkins Signs

Co. Assessor Agency Fund
Educational & Training Service
Vicki Kirkpatrick

Southwest lowa Assessors Attn:
US Bank

Appraisal Fees

Vanguard Appraisals Inc.
Fremont Co-HRA

Medical & Health Charges
Auxiant

Grand Total

80.00
80.00
80.00
80.00

7,502.78
24,093.88
33,358.54

634.12
31.99
333.15
346.40
126.44
10,068.47

216.07
64.19

141.17
128.74

96.00
600.30

497.00

69,401.00

5.84

901.48
75.00
7.27
225.00
845.11

13,148.10

641.46

224,291.78



The Fremont County Board of Supervisors met in regular session on Wednesday, July 27, 2022, in the Fremont County
Courthouse Boardroom, with Hickey and Clark present, Let the record show Sheldon was absent for this meeting, A quorum was
declared, and the meeting officially called to order at 9:00 a.m. The agenda was approved as posted. The minutes of the previous
meeting were read & approved.

Let the records show that Engineer Dan Davis, Deputy Recorder Tarah Berry, Casey Moyer, and Liz Skillern with Valley News
Today were present for this meeting.

Engineer Dan Davis met with the board for the signing of the following:

Davis stated that in order to get this grant the county has to have a new safety plan. They said that none of our current plans meet
the needs. They are planning to do a statewide updated safety plan for all 99 counties. This resolution and a new safety plan are
the next steps in the process. Motion by Clark to allow Chairman Hickey to sign resolution for participation in SS4A Grant
Application. Motion carried unanimously.

RESOLUTION FOR PARTICIPATION IN SS4A GRANT APPLICATION

Fremont County Resolution No. 2022-42

WHEREAS, as part of the new Federal Transportation Bill, Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (ILJA), there is over $1B of
roadway safety funding available in the form of Safe Streets and Roads for All (S84A) grants. To be an eligible applicant for this
new safety funding, a county MUST have an eligible Action Plan in place; and

WHEREAS, the lowa County Engineers Association (ICEA) plans to apply for a SS4A grant to develop and supply all 99
counties in Iowa with an eligible Action Plan at no cost to the counties. ICEA encourages all 99 counties to participate in this
grant application; and

WHEREAS, the Fremont County Board of Supervisors will commit to achieve significant declines in roadway fatalities and
serious injuries in Fremont County; and

WHEREAS, the Fremont County Board of Supervisors recognizes the Action Plan and will assist the County Engineer’s
department in achieving the goal of a dramatic decrease in roadway fatalities and serious injuries and zero roadway fatalities and
serious injuries by the years 2030 and 2050, respectively; and

WHEREAS, the Fremont County Board of Supervisors, after consulting with the Fremont County Engineer, desires to participate
in a joint SS4A grant to develop and receive an eligible Action Plan for Fremont County.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FREMONT COUNTY that this County does
hereby request to be included in the statewide SS4A grant to develop Actions Plans for all 99 counties in lowa.

Resolution adopted this 27" day of July, 2022.

Fremont County Board of Supervisors

/s/ Randy Hickey

Board of Supervisors Chairperson

ATTEST:

/s/ Dee Owen

Fremont County Auditor

Motion by Clark to allow Chairman Hickey to sign application for approval of underground construction in county ROW for
Windstream lowa Communications, LLC for 12 pairs of copper cable under 320th Avenue 3 miles east of Sidney. Motion carried
unanimously.

Motion by Clark to allow Chairman Hickey to sign work in ROW permit with Golder Associates USA for Buckeye Partners to
place an 8 petroleum pipeline at 150th Street east of 370th Avenue, Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Clark to allow Chairman Hickey to sign resolution to accept bid on project #STBG-SWAPS-C0O36(90) - - FG-36
(Bluff RD) with JB Holland Construction Inc. Motion carried unanimously.

RESOLUTION 2022-43

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, hereafter referred to as “the Board”, believes the STBG-SWAPS-C0O36(90)--FG-36,
hereafier referred to as “the project™ is in the best interest of Fremont, lowa, and the residents thereof. The project is defined as
HMA Pavement — Full Depth Reclamation; and

WHEREAS, the Board has sought appropriate professional guidance for the concept and planning for the project and followed
the steps as required by the Code of lowa for notifications, hearings, and bidding/letting; and

WHEREAS, The Board finds this resolution appropriate and necessary to protect, preserve, and improve the rights, privileges,
property, peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of Fremont County and its citizens, all as provided for in and
permitted by section 331.301 of the Code of Iowa; and

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED by Board to accept the bid from JB Holland Construction INC. in the amount of $1,085,461.10
and awards the associated contract(s) to the same;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all other resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby
repealed. If any part of this resolution is adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of
the resolution or action of The Board as a whole or any part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. This resolution
shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its approval as provided by law; and

55



54

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Fremont County, lowa, that after receiving the necessary contract
documents, including but not limited to, the contractor’s bond and certificate of insurance, Daniel R. Davis, the County Engineer
for Fremont County, lowa, be and is hereby designated, authorized, and empowered on behalf of the Board of Supervisors of said
County to execute the contracts in connection with the afore awarded construction project let through the DOT for this county.
Dated at Fremont County, lowa, this 27th day of July, 2022.

Board of Supervisors of Fremont, lowa.

ATTEST:
/s/ Dee Owen /s/ Randy Hickey, Chairman  aye
Fremont County Auditor /s/ Chris Clark aye

Dustin Sheldon absent

Motion by Clark to allow Chairman Hickey to sign resolution to accept bid on project #STBG-SWAPS-CO3 6(91) - - FG-36
(Manti RD) with JB Holland Construction Inc. Motion carried unanimously.

RESOLUTION 2022-44

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, hereafter referred to as “the Board”, believes the STBG-SWAPS-C036(91)--FG-36,
hereafter referred to as “the project” is in the best interest of Fremont, lowa, and the residents thereof. The project is defined as
HMA Pavement - Full Depth Reclamation; and

WHEREAS, the Board has sought appropriate professional guidance for the concept and planning for the project and followed
the steps as required by the Code of Towa for notifications, hearings, and bidding/letting; and

WHEREAS, The Board finds this resolution appropriate and necessary to protect, preserve, and improve the rights, privileges,
property, peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of Fremont County and its citizens, all as provided for in and
permitted by section 331.301 of the Code of lowa; and

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED by Board to accept the bid from JB Holland Construction INC. in the amount of $1,247.675.61
and awards the associated contract(s) to the same;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all other resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby
repealed. If any part of this resolution is adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of
the resolution or action of The Board as a whole or any part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. This resolution
shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its approval as provided by law; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Fremont County, lowa, that after receiving the necessary contract
documents, including but not limited to, the contractor’s bond and certificate of insurance, Daniel R. Davis, the County Engineer
for Fremont County, Iowa, be and is hereby designated, authorized, and empowered on behalf of the Board of Supervisors of said
County to execute the contracts in connection with the afore awarded construction project let through the DOT for this county.
Dated at Fremont County, lowa, this 27th day of July, 2022.

Board of Supervisors of Fremont, lowa

ATTEST:
/s/ Dee Owen /s/ Randy Hickey, Chairman  aye
Fremont County Auditor /s/ Chris Clark aye

Dustin Sheldon absent

Motion made by Clark to approve the renewal of the Class C/Sunday Sales Beer Permit for The Junction (Cubby’s). Motion
carried unanimously.

Motion by Clark to allow Chairman Hickey to sign EN 3 Substantial Completion Form for East/West Nishnabotna Watershed
Project. Motion carried unanimously.

Casey Moyer from the Fremont County Landfill met with the board for consideration of the financial assurance for closure/post
closure costs letter. This is a yearly letter that the board signs for the landfill. Motion was made by Clark to allow Chairman
Hickey to sign the letter. Motion carried unanimously.

The board discussed a time limit for buyout relocation benefits. The time limit is a requirement for the administration plan.
According to SWIPCO, the last property was acquired on February 14, 2022, so that 6-month timeframe would end on August
14", The one year timeframe would end February, 2023. SWIPCO said we haven’t had any relocation requests since the last
acquisition. Motion by Hickey to place a limit of 6 months for the for the buyout relocation benefits. Motion carried
unanimously.

The board discussed the vacancy in the Recorder’s Office created when long-time recorder Jenny McAllister passed away. The
board would like to appoint for her position until the General Election. Motion by Hickey to publish their intent to appoint for the
position. Motion carried unanimously.

Claims were approved for July 29, 2022.

At 9:24 a.m., there being no further business, Clark made a motion to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously.



ATTEST:

ee Owen, Auditor

«*1?/? O /;-A;

“Randy Hi Lck)g{ Chairman™

85



General Basic Fund

Fertilizer & Seed

Anderson Paint & Tree Care Lar
Food & Provisions

Performance FoodService

Sysco Lincoln

Clothing & Dry Goods
Charm-Tex

Custodial Supplies

Valeri Albertsen

Performance FoodService

Sysco Lincoln

Lubricants

Bateman Tire and Repair

Tires & Tubes

Bateman Tire and Repair

Minor Mv Parts & Access
Dannar Auto

Wearing Apparel & Uniform
Great Plains Uniforms LLC
Board Proceedings

The Hamburg Reporter Nebraska
Telephone & Telegraph Services
Chat Mobility

Windstream lowa Communication
Electric Power

MidAmerican Energy Co.
Buildings

Culligan

Custodial

CINTAS LOC 749

Dues & Memberships

Secretary of State Notary Divi
Hotel Motel General (unrest)
Contrib to Other Gov & Org
SCIA Shenandoah Chamber and
Hotel Motel (restricted)

Fremont County Conservation Bd
Fremont Co Historical Society
Fremont County Fair Assoc.
Gold Buckle Productions LLC
Hamburg Kiwanis Club C/O Melin
Tabor Hometown Pride Susan She
Secondary Road Fund

Cover Aggregate & Sand
Schildberg Constr Co Inc

Traffic & Street Sign Material
Tunnicliff, Inc. dba JB Parts
Hardware (non motor vehicle)
Tunnicliff, Inc. dba JB Parts

Claims July 29, 2022

150.00

420.96
649.49

381.60
240.00
99.76
80.25
85.00
120.00
118.00
326.49
248.50

201.84
1,899.18

2,917.21
175.00
30.00

30.00

5,000.00

5,000.00
3,000.00
2,600.00
10,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00

15,845.60
55.30

272.97

Tires & Tubes

Sapp Brothers Truck Stops Inc
Minor Mv Parts & Access
Freightliner Truck Center Co
Interstate Battery of Omaha
Tunnicliff, Inc. dba JB Parts
Keim Farm Equipment Inc.
O'Reilly Auto Parts

Power Plan

Road Builders Mach. & Sup. Co.
Stationery & Forms

Kriegler Office Equipment
Telephone & Telegraph Services
U.S. Cellular

Windstream lowa Communication
Medical & Health Services
Walman Optical Company
Electric Power

MidAmerican Energy Co.

Motor Vehicle Equipment

MHC Kenworth

Power Plan

Extermination Services

Jeff Vrba ResCom Services
Roads

City of Farragut

City of Randolph

City of Riverton

City of Thurman

Shop Equipment

Northern Tool & Equipment
Mule Slough

Kemz Service, LLC

Mule Slough/West Benton Relevy
Kemz Service, LLC

Jnt Disaster Serv.Fund
Telephone & Telegraph Services
Chat Mobility

Verizon

Tort Liability

IA Communities Assurance Pool
Equipment Insurance

IA Communities Assurance Pool
Protection/Security Services
City of Council Bluffs City Tr
E911 Surcharge

Telephone & Telegraph Services
Windstream lowa Communication
Fremont Co-HRA

Medical & Health Charges
Auxiant

Grand Total

480.00
257.26
373.90
68.69
238.14
184.57
7,700.91
64.53
23.25

812.65
245.72

193.00
113.74

567.50
2,988.55

98.98
1,014.15
42538
232.42
611.43
379.97
2,301.69
1,150.85
36.45
40.01
2,221.00
1,997.00

1,860.25

1,116.49

4,801.83

84,547.46



	07082022.pdf
	Sheet1

	publication07132022.pdf
	07152022.pdf
	Sheet1


	publication07202022.pdf
	07222022.pdf
	Sheet1


	publication07272022.pdf
	07292022.pdf
	Sheet1



